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COLLECTIVE/CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND 

Ruby Sheffield, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, bring this 

action against BB&T Corporation, Branch Banking and Trust Company, and DOES 1-10 

(collectively, “BB&T”), and states as follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. Plaintiff brings this action, individually and on behalf of all others similarly

situated, to recover monetary damages, liquidated damages, interest and costs, including 

attorneys’ fees and costs, as a result of BB&T’s willful violation of: the Fair Labor Standards 

Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq. (“FLSA”) and the North Carolina Wage and Hour Act, N.C. Gen 

Stat. §§ 95-25.1, et seq. (“NCWHA”). 

2. BB&T failed, and continues to fail, to pay its employees for the time they worked

at its call center located in Lumberton, North Carolina. 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This Court has original jurisdiction to hear this action and to adjudicate the claims 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, because this action is brought under federal law, the FLSA. 

4. The Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the related NCWHA claim under 28 

U.S.C. § 1367(a). 

5. Venue is proper in this Court because BB&T operated facilities in this district and 

because a substantial part of the events giving rise to the claims occurred in this district. 

6. The Fayetteville Division is proper because BB&T operates facilities in Robeson 

County and a substantial part of the events giving rise to the claims occurred there. 

THE PARTIES 

7. Plaintiff Ruby Sheffield is a citizen of North Carolina who resides in Laurinburg, 

Scotland County.  BB&T employed her as a nonexempt Collections Clerk 1 from March 23, 

2015 to March 9, 2016.  BB&T paid her $12.50 per hour.  Attached, as Exhibit 1, is her consent 

to sue. 

8. Defendant BB&T Corporation is a publically traded corporation, organized under 

the laws of the State of North Carolina, with its principal place of business in Winston-Salem, 

North Carolina. 

9. Defendant Branch Banking and Trust Company is a commercial bank with 

locations in North Carolina, and has a registered agent in Raleigh, North Carolina.  Branch 

Banking and Trust provides banking products and services, including consumer loans, and is a 

wholly owned subsidiary of BB&T Corporation. 

10. At all times material to this cause of action, BB&T provided customer service 

through calls centers located in North Carolina. 
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11. Plaintiff does not know the true names and capacities, whether individual, partner, 

or corporate, of the Defendants sued herein as DOES 1 – 10, inclusive, and for that reason, 

Defendants are sued under such fictitious names.  Plaintiff will seek leave from this Court to 

amend this Complaint when the true names and capacities of the DOE Defendants are 

discovered. 

12. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and allege thereon, that at all relevant times, 

each of the Defendants, including DOE Defendants, whether individual, partner, corporate, was 

and is responsible in some manner for the circumstances alleged herein, and proximately cause 

Plaintiff’s and the similarly situated class, to be subject to the unlawful acts and practices 

complained of herein. 

13. At all times relevant, Defendants were members of, and engaged in, a joint 

venture, partnership, and common enterprise, and were acting within the course and scope of, an 

in pursuance of said joint venture, partnership or common enterprise. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

14. BB&T operates a call center facility at 4251 Fayetteville Road, Lumberton, North 

Carolina. 

15. Plaintiff was employed at the Lumberton location. 

16. Plaintiff and the other class members are former and current call center 

employees, with job titles such as Customer Service Representative, Collection Clerks, or other 

job titles.  For purposes of this Complaint, the term “CSR” will represent all such employees. 

17. The CSRs perform similar job duties, namely: contacting customers about 

account issues and assisting customers with any other issues involving their accounts via 

telephone. 
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18. Throughout their employment, BB&T required its CSRs to report to work at least 

10 minutes prior to every shift to boot up their computers and log on to programs.  This allowed 

them to answer customer calls as soon as their normal or scheduled shift started. 

19. This off-the-clock work repeated itself every shift for every employee at this 

location. 

20. Off-the-clock work at call centers is so rampant that the U.S. Department of 

Labor (“DOL”) issued Fact Sheet # 64 in July 2008 to alert call center employees and employers 

to some of the abuses that are prevalent in the industry.  One of those abuses, which occurred in 

this case, involves an employer’s refusal to pay for work “from the beginning of the first 

principal activity of the workday to the end of the last principal activity of the workday.” 

(Exhibit 2, DOL Fact Sheet # 64, at 2.) 

21. BB&T benefited from this off-the-clock work because it provided uninterrupted 

coverage and shorter hold times when its customers called a CSR or when a CSR called a 

customer.  It also permitted BB&T to provide the same service with fewer employees. 

22. BB&T’s compensation policies and practices deprived CSRs wages that were 

owed for pre-shift off-the-clock work.  In workweeks where CSRs worked more than 40 hours, 

these policies and practices also deprived the CSRs of overtime pay at the rate of one and one-

half times their regular rate of pay as required by the FLSA and NCWHA. 

23. For example, Plaintiff was regularly scheduled to work 40 hours per week.  Every 

couple of months she was required to work four to five hours of overtime.  While BB&T 

properly paid her for those scheduled overtime hours, BB&T never paid her for the 50 minutes 

of boot up time that she was required to do prior to her regular or overtime shifts.  As a result, 

BB&T shorted her approximately $15.63 each workweek. 
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24. At all relevant times, BB&T employed Plaintiff and other CSRs, it controlled 

their work, duties, protocols, applications, assignments, conditions of their employment and 

scheduled their shifts, including them to work off-the-clock. 

25. The time they spent booting up their computers and logging into programs was 

necessary for all CSRs to perform their jobs and was required by and solely benefited BB&T. 

26. Based upon information and belief, BB&T employed more than 100 CSRs at this 

location and hundreds more across North Carolina. 

27. At all relevant times, BB&T maintained control, oversight, and direction over 

Plaintiff and class members, including its creation and enforcement of policies and practices 

affecting the payment of wages and overtime wages. 

28. At all relevant times, BB&T was able to track the amount of time that Plaintiff 

and the class members spent starting up and logging in to BB&T’s computer systems.  However, 

BB&T failed to document, track or pay Plaintiff and the class members for the preliminary work 

that they performed in connection with each shift. 

29. At all relevant times, BB&T used its adherence and attendance policies against 

Plaintiff and the class members for their preliminary time worked and failed to pay them for that 

time. 

30. BB&T’s violations of FLSA and NCWHA were willful and not in good faith 

because, among other things, it blatantly ignored Department of Labor warnings about paying 

CSRs for the overtime hours they worked. 

31. BB&T’s wrongful acts, as alleged herein, were not made in conformity with or 

reliance upon any written administration, regulation, order, ruling, interpretation, or approval by 

DOL or other enforcement agency. 
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FLSA AND NCWHA COVERAGE ALLEGATIONS 

32. At all relevant times, Plaintiff and those similarly situated were “employees” of 

BB&T as both the FLSA and NCWHA define that term. 

33. BB&T is an “employer” under the FLSA and the NCWHA and employed 

Plaintiff and those similarly situated. 

34.  BB&T earned net revenues of more than $500,000 in 2015 and it was engaged in 

commerce or in the production of goods for interstate commerce. 

35. Accordingly, BB&T is covered under the provisions of the FLSA and the 

NCWHA. 

36. BB&T is subject to “enterprise liability” under the FLSA and the NCWHA. 

37. Plaintiff and those similarly situated are not exempt from the coverage of the 

FLSA or the NCWHA. 

COLLECTIVE ALLEGATIONS & CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

38. Plaintiff brings this action individually and on behalf of various class members. 

All of these class members are or were affected by BB&T’s willful and intentional violation of 

the FLSA, the NCWHA, or both, as described in this Complaint. 

39. Plaintiff and those similarly situated bring this action for violations of the FLSA 

as a collective action under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). 

40. Plaintiff and those similarly situated bring this action for violations of the 

NCWHA and for common-law breach of contract as a Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 class action. 

41. The “FLSA Collective Action Class” is defined as: 

All call center “Customer Service Representatives,” or 
similar job title, employed by BB&T Corporation and Branch 
Banking and Trust Company, its subsidiaries, or other related 
entities anywhere in the United States or its territories, who 
were not paid for pre-shift and computer boot up time they 
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worked from three years prior to filing this Complaint through 
the completion of its litigation. 

Plaintiff reserves the right to redefine the FLSA Collective Action Class prior to 

conditional certification of the FLSA Collective Action Class. 

42. The “North Carolina Rule 23 Class” is defined as: 

All North Carolina call center “Customer Service 
Representatives,” or similar job title, employed by BB&T 
Corporation and Branch Banking and Trust Company, its 
subsidiaries, or other related entities, who were not paid for 
pre-shift and computer boot up time they worked from three 
years prior to filing this Complaint through the completion of 
its litigation. 

Plaintiff reserves the right to redefine the North Carolina Rule 23 Class prior to class 

certification. 

43. This action is properly brought as a collective action under the FLSA because the 

members of the FLSA Collective Action Class are “similarly situated.” 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). 

44. This action is properly brought as a Rule 23 class action because the claims held 

by the North Carolina Rule 23 Class satisfy the numerosity, commonality, typicality, adequacy, 

predominance and superiority requirements of a class action under Rule 23. 

45. Numerosity: The North Carolina Rule 23 Class meets the numerosity requirement 

of Rule 23(a)(1) because BB&T employed numerous CSRs in North Carolina while subjecting 

them to working over 40 hours without overtime compensation. The precise number of Class 

members should be readily available from a review of BB&T’s personnel, scheduling, time, 

payroll, and billing records, and from input received from the Class members, but it is believed 

to exceed 200 members. 

46. Commonality: The North Carolina Rule 23 Class meets the commonality 

requirement of Rule 23(a)(2) because BB&T engaged in a common course of conduct that 

Case 7:16-cv-00332-BO   Document 1   Filed 09/23/16   Page 7 of 13



8 
 

violated the legal rights of the Class.  Any question presented by an individual Class member’s 

claim will be far less central to this litigation than the numerous common questions of law and 

fact applicable to Class claims, including but not limited to: 

a. Class members’ job duties. 

b. Whether BB&T subjected Class members to similar off-

the-clock demands. 

c. Whether BB&T subjected Class members to common 

compensation policies. 

d. Whether BB&T failed to pay Class members wages for all 

hours worked. 

e. Whether the NCWHA required BB&T to pay overtime, 

exemplary damages, attorney fees, costs, and interest to Class members. 

f. Whether North Carolina’s common law of contract requires 

the payment of unpaid wages and other damages to Class members. 

47. Typicality: The North Carolina Rule 23 Class meets the typicality requirement of 

Rule 23(a)(3) because BB&T employed Plaintiff and all Class members to perform similar job 

duties, to suffer similar requirements to work off the clock, and to perform that work without 

proper pay or overtime compensation. 

48. Adequacy: The North Carolina Rule 23 Class meets the fair and adequate 

representation requirement of Rule 23(a)(4) because there is no apparent conflict of interest 

between Plaintiff and other Class members.  Moreover, Plaintiff has retained multiple, national 

law firms with lawyers qualified and experienced in the prosecution of nationwide wage-and-

hour class actions. No Plaintiff or Plaintiff’s lawyer has interests that are contrary to, or 

conflicting with, the interests of the Rule 23 Class.  

Case 7:16-cv-00332-BO   Document 1   Filed 09/23/16   Page 8 of 13



9 
 

49. Predominance: The North Carolina Rule 23 Class meets the predominance 

requirement of Rule 23(b)(3), because issues common to the Class— namely, whether BB&T 

paid the Class’ properly for hours worked —predominate over any questions affecting only 

individual members. 

50. Superiority: The North Carolina Rule 23 Class meets the superiority requirement 

of Rule 23(b)(3) because allowing the parties to resolve this controversy through a class action 

would permit a large number of similarly situated persons to prosecute common claims in a 

single forum simultaneously, efficiently, and without the unnecessary duplication of evidence, 

effort, or expense that numerous individual actions would require. 

51. Given the material similarity of the North Carolina Rule 23 Class members’ 

claims, class treatment is superior.  Individual litigation of the legal and factual issues presented 

by the BB&T’s actions would cause delay, significant duplication of efforts, and a waste of 

resources. Proceeding as a class action should be more efficient in terms of the attorneys’ fees 

incurred on each side of the case, permit the efficient supervision of Class claims, and result in a 

binding, uniform adjudication of common issues. 

52. Manageability: Rule 23(b)(3)(D) requires the Court to consider whether there are 

likely difficulties in managing a class action. Plaintiff and those similarly situated believe that a 

class action can be easily managed by sending the North Carolina Rule 23 Class notice at the 

same time that notice will be sent to all members of the FLSA Collective Action Class. Because 

the claims overlap factually and legally, there should be efficient judicial treatment of North 

Carolina plaintiffs’ claims in a Rule 23 class. 

53. This Complaint should be construed so as to incorporate all relevant allegations 

above into each legal count below. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 8(e). 
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COUNT 1: VIOLATION OF THE FLSA—FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME 
(Brought by Plaintiff and those similarly situated and the FLSA Collective Action Class) 

54. BB&T required Plaintiff and class members to work more than 40 hours in a 

workweek. 

55. BB&T required Plaintiff and class members to work without proper 

compensation. 

56. BB&T failed to pay Plaintiff and other class members’ wages for each hour 

worked. 

57. BB&T failed to pay Plaintiff and those similarly situated overtime compensation 

for hours worked beyond 40 in a workweek. 

58. BB&T violated the FLSA by failing to pay Plaintiff and other class members’ 

overtime compensation at the rate of one and one-half for all hours worked in excess of 40 in a 

workweek. 

59. BB&T willfully violated the FLSA, subjecting these claims to a three-year statute 

of limitations under 29 U.S.C. § 255 because, among other reasons, it ignored the DOL warning 

about the payment of overtime for all hours worked by call center employees. 

60. As a result of BB&T’s FLSA violations, Plaintiff and class members were 

illegally deprived of their earned wages, entitling them to unpaid wages, liquidated damages, 

pre-judgment interest, costs, reasonable attorneys’ fees and other compensation under 29 U.S.C. 

§ 216(b). 

COUNT 2: VIOLATION OF THE NCWHA 
(Brought by Plaintiff and those similarly situated and the North Carolina Rule 23 Class) 

61. BB&T violated and continues to violate the NCWHA because it is unlawful under 

North Carolina law for an employer to require or permit an employee to work without paying 

compensation for all hours worked.  N.C. Gen. Stat. § 95-25.6. 
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62.  BB&T further violated and continues to violate the NCWHA because it is unlawful 

under North Carolina law for an employer to require or permit a non-exempt employee to work 

in excess of 40 hours per week without paying overtime.  N.C. Gen. Stat. § 95-25.4. 

63. BB&T’s conduct and practice was willful, intentional, unreasonable, and in bad 

faith and constitute continuing violations of the NCWHA. 

64. As a result, Plaintiff and class members suffered harm. They are entitled to 

damages in the amount of their unpaid earned compensation, plus liquidated damages as 

provided by the NCWHA, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 95-25.22. 

COUNT 3: BREACH OF CONTRACT 
(Brought by Plaintiff and those similarly situated and the North Carolina Rule 23 Class) 

65. Plaintiff, other class members, and BB&T entered into a contract whereby 

Plaintiff and those class members would perform work and BB&T agreed to pay them their 

hourly rate for work performed. 

66. Plaintiff and those similarly situated and class members met their obligations of 

performing work, including the off-the-clock worked described herein. 

67. BB&T breached the contract by failing to pay Plaintiff and class members for the 

off-the-clock work they performed. 

68. As a direct result of BB&T’ breach, Plaintiff and class members suffered damages 

in amount of lost wages. 

69. Accordingly, Plaintiff and those similarly situated and class members are entitled 

to compensatory damages and an award of pre- and post-judgment interest at the applicable legal 

rate. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, together and on behalf of all others similarly situated, pray for 

a judgement against Defendant as follows: 

1) Compensatory damages, namely, the amount of all wages not paid for all hours 

Plaintiff worked. 

2) Compensatory damages, namely, the amount of unpaid overtime wages calculated 

at the rate of one and one-half of each Plaintiff’s regular rate multiplied by all 

hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week. 

3) Liquidated damages in an amount equal to the amount of unpaid overtime wages. 

4) A declaration that Defendants’ wage practice alleged herein violates the FLSA 

and its regulations. 

5) A declaration that through the wage practice alleged herein, the Defendants 

willfully violated the FLSA and its regulations. 

6) A declaratory judgment that Defendants’ wage practice alleged herein violates the 

NCWHA and implementing regulations. 

7) That this action be certified as a collective action under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) with 

respect to the FLSA claims (Count 1 only). 

8) That this action be certified as a Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 class action with respect to the 

NCWHA and common law claims (Counts 2 and 3 only). 

9) Incentive awards for Plaintiff. 

10) Pre- and post-judgment interest on all damages. 

11) Attorney fees, in accordance with the FLSA and the NCWHA. 

12) Such further relief as this court deems appropriate. 

DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, hereby demands a trial by 

jury. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Dated:  September 23, 2016 /s/ Daniel K. Bryson   

Daniel K. Bryson, Esq.  

N.C. Bar #15781 

Whitfield, Bryson, & Mason 

900 W. Morgan Street 

Raleigh, NC 27603 

Tel.: (919)600-5000 

E-mail: dan@wbmllp.com 
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